Faculty Caucus Minutes
Wednesday, November 4, 2015
(Unapproved)
Call to Order

Senator Kalter called the meeting to order.
Faculty Volunteer for Faculty/Staff Email Migration Planning Team
Senator Kalter:  I received an email from Interim Associate Vice President for Administrative Technologies Matthew Helm.  He says, “I invite participation from a member of the Academic Senate on the Faculty/Staff Email Migration Planning Team.  The team will plan for the migration of faculty/staff email from the RedbirdMail Internal Exchange email systems onto Microsoft Office 365 platform.”  He indicates that he is also asking for a member from AP Council and Civil Service Council.  He says “The RedbirdMail platform is eight years old and the campus has been maintaining two separate email systems for years.  The migration to Microsoft Office 365 will provide the university community with the latest email features, such as increased storage space, direct integration of Microsoft Office 365 applications and better support for phone applications that are already enjoyed by faculty and staff of other major universities.”  This is basically the same kind of migration that our students have just undergone and so he is looking for a volunteer to serve on that migration committee.

Would anybody like to volunteer?

Senator Lonbom:  I’m not volunteering but I am noticing the thinness of our group.  How soon does he need a volunteer?  Is this something you could send out to everyone in Caucus?

Senator Kalter:  I can.  He says “I plan for the team to begin meeting in mid-November.”  My thought was that somebody from Academic Affairs would be ideal, given that Academic Affairs is looking at the technology issues anyway.  I will just note that we weren’t consulted on whether to move to Office 365 and to decommission RedbirdMail.  Talking to one of the tech people in CAS, apparently that’s going to be okay.  I’m going to trust that.  But I will just note that the shared governance probably should have been a step or two further back.  I was hoping that Senator Gizzi might be here so he could volunteer himself.

I will go with Senator Lonbom’s suggestion and send this around to see if we can get a volunteer from email, if that would be okay with the Caucus, to go with whoever volunteers.  

The Caucus assented.

ASPT Discussion

Senator Kalter: Welcome back to Doris Houston, Chair of URC, and Angie Bonnell, who is another URC member and Sam Catanzaro of the Provost’s Office.
We are skipping past Article XI.  We will start with Article XII, the Performance Evaluation, and Salary Incrementation Article. If we get to the disciplinary stuff by the 2017 sort of deadline thing, it will become Article XV, but right now we are not going with renumbering yet. In the current Article XII.A.2.c, there is an editorial amendment. “They shall be” and in XII.A.3, a change from section to article. On the next page, in XII.B.3, an editorial change from section to article. Next page, XII.B.6, simply putting quotation marks around unsatisfactory performance. That looks like that’s it. I will observe at the end of that page the stray period that can be gotten rid of. 
Senator Daddario: Under B.2, the materials upon which faculty are evaluated shall include student reactions to teaching performance. The phrase student reactions seems bizarre. It sends me into the heart of the efficacy of student evaluations. Is there a more substantive term instead of student reactions? Is it a direct comment about student evaluations?

Dr. Catanzaro: I think it is legacy language, so I will let the voting members of the committee speak for themselves. I don’t know if the committee is particularly wedded to this phrase.
Senator Kalter: Do you have anything to suggest, Senator Daddario? Would you prefer responses or something entirely different?
Senator Daddario: If it is referencing student evaluations,that makes the most sense because that is a uniform thing that will probably exist in every department.
Senator Bonnell: Do we have language earlier about except for anonymous communication? I wonder if we could look for earlier language to change that language to match earlier language.
Senator Kalter: It does seem like something that should be looked at throughout the document. Reactions sounds like just that day you decided to react as opposed to you thoughtfully filled out an evaluation at the end of the semester.
Senator Daddario: It also doesn’t restrict the reaction to the classroom.

Dr. Catanzaro: On the other hand, there is a lot of teaching activity that happens outside the classroom.

Senator Crowley: I am worried about the earlier reference that might not clarify it. So maybe we should be careful before we decide to take the earlier reference. That too might cloud it. If we mean evaluations, just say evaluations.

Senator Kalter: We might say that they may not be weighted more than half when considering teaching and their consideration shall follow the AAUP guidelines, especially those issued in 2005. There has been a lot of research since this was first written about the efficacy of student evaluations. We are also in a rate my professor and Facebook era where this has changed a bit. We all value having this language in here, but we ought to be thinking about following the most recent research about how much student evaluations should weigh, how they should be taken into consideration and that kind of thing rather than just saying the materials upon which faculty members are evaluated shall include…  I’m seeing a nod from Senator Daddario.
Senator Daddario: Since it stands alone as its own number 2, it does acknowledge the significance of it and yet it doesn’t go into much detail about it. The door’s open for broadening it maybe specifying what is included in that. Then we get into do we want to list all of what is included as a student evaluation or do you not want to do that because that is the trouble.
Professor Houston: That same language is cross-referenced in Appendix 2, which is on page 81. Item 1, a record of solidly favorable student reactions to teaching performance. That section also notes that departments/schools must use two or more types of factors to evaluate teaching performance, one of which shall be student reactions to teaching performance. If there were a change, we would need to be consistent throughout.

Senator Daddario: I think it’s important to consider changing it because it seems too broad to me.

Senator Kalter:  It’s an interesting wording in the appendix because that is partly what I am referring to when I say may not be weighed more than half. The appendix actually allows you to use only two of the criteria for teaching productivity but doesn’t say how to weigh those things. So I think in a lot of departments people feel as though what I am being judged on for my teaching is almost entirely what the students say about me, without context, without peer evaluation, without review of syllabi or best practices in a particular discipline. That’s why I thought somewhere, whether here or in the appendix or both, indicating, if you are only using two, you have to weigh them equally at least and that we should be following the most recent AAUP guidelines with regard to teaching evaluation. 
The other ones that I had further up in the document, on XII.A.4, just a friendly amendment. It says “a summary of these recommendations shall be submitted by the Provost to the President and the Academic Senate.” If we could change that to “Faculty Caucus of the Academic Senate.”  

Then right under that, we list the salary increments and we say salary increments shall be paid to individuals promoted from assistant to associate $3,000 per year minimum, $5,000 from associate to full and it says that the Provost may increase the minimum amount. I am wondering how and when those are adjusted and whether we want to continue to take people who are on very different pay scales and make minimums in dollar figures.  In other words, if you worked for one department, you may be getting paid half as much as a colleague in another department. So what has happened in some higher paid salary departments is that compression and inversion occurs much more rapidly because everyone is getting that minimum that is a dollar figure rather than a percentage. I am not really sure, but I know a couple of years ago this changed, maybe because the Caucus, itself, approved a change to this language here, but I wonder if URC could talk about that language. It does seem wise to have some sort of minimum, but it also seems like part of the reason why we get inversion and compression in our salary structure is because we have minimums that are not really taking into account the different salaries of the different kinds of departments.
Professor Houston: What is your recommendation?

Senator Kalter: I don’t have a specific one right now. I wonder if it should be a percentage, but that is something that would need to be discussed. 
Also, in XII.B.5, this is the section that says each DFSC/SFSC shall notify each faculty member annually in the writing of the faculty member’s performance evaluation of any recommended changes in rank and/or tenure status. This letter shall provide an assessment of the faculty member’s strengths and weakness and, when applicable, progress toward achievement of promotion or tenure. I am wondering if we might want to include suggestions toward addressing weakness rather than just stating that the letter will provide an assessment of those weaknesses, asking the DFSCs to help the faculty member by saying here are some of the weaknesses we have identified. Here are some of the things you might be able to do to address those.
Professor Houston: Could you repeat that?

Senator Kalter: My phrasing was suggestions toward addressing weaknesses.

Senator Huxford: It is a great idea as long as it remains a suggestion.
Senator Kalter: That’s why I said suggestion because I do think you tread dangerous territory in telling somebody how to improve their teaching as opposed to having the process be professional development and helping that not be a punitive process but to be a process that encourages improvement in areas of weakness.

Senator Huxford: Sometimes they are flat out wrong.
Senator Kalter: That’s true.

We are going to move to the longest article in the book, Article XIII, the appeals of policies and procedures. Because this is so long, I am going to break it up and just read the changes for XIII.A, B and C first and then D and E and then F, G and H and then individually I, J and K. Starting with A, B and C, again, the numbering will not change. In XIII.A, there is a substantive addition for clarification. In the second paragraph, there is a sort of a substantive that says except as noted and also an addition of a third paragraph, substantive, but that part will probably not change until the new articles are approved. 
Then in XIII.B.2, I believe there they are adding the word formal to the all meetings and then adding a number 3 so that there is a substantive insertion of a timeline and all of the rest that attaches to that on the next page. Then right underneath that, there is a will/shall. I think we should put that in the must/shall not going to talk about it category, a renumbering that we don’t have to talk about, d is also a must/shall and then a will/shall on the next page. 
XIII.D.4 has another substantive change about rules of evidence and courts of law. 

Then an entire new section, XIII.E, procedures for meeting or chair/director preliminary to an appeal of a dean or chair/director report making a negative tenure or promotion recommendation. That is a major substantive change. 
Did I already go past my…sorry. Now we have got it up through D. Let’s start with XIII.A, B and C. Any comments on those? 
Senator Troxel: In B.3, it gives us a timeline for holding formal meetings. A friendly suggestion is that C and the new D be flipped just to be chronological. So A has a December 15 deadline, B has a February 15 deadline, C is March 8 and D is March 1.

Professor Houston: Thank you.

Senator Kalter: I have a note to myself for XIII.A for the second paragraph. Is there an easier way…I am not sure if that is a really important question, but I am wondering if people believe, in the first paragraph, that that addition did clarify? Then in the second paragraph whether the “except as noted” is the best way to indicate what is going on there. The URC is suggesting adding to Illinois State encourages the fair and equitable resolution of appeals adding something that says an informal resolution may be effected after a formal meeting has been requested. In contrast to formal meetings, as defined in what is going to be, perhaps XVI.B., informal resolutions of issues can be accomplished through communications that address questions and concerns through provision of information or clarification. And in the next paragraph, it says time requirements and deadlines for filing appeals and for other processes are found in Appendix 1 to these policies, except as noted.
Does everyone think that that language is clear?

Senator Bushell: Then I am going to ask again, can you repeat that?

Senator Kalter: XIII.A reads Illinois State University encourages the fair and equitable resolution of appeals. Informal resolution of issues is encouraged at the DFSC/SFSC and CFSC levels prior to formal meetings and/or appeals. An informal resolution may be effected after a formal meeting has been requested. In contrast to formal meetings, as defined in, it’s now XIII.B but will become something else, informal resolutions of issues can be accomplished through communications that address questions and concerns through provision of information or clarification. Time requirements and deadlines for filing appeals and for other processes are found in Appendix 1 to these policies, except as noted.

Senator Daddario: In the first paragraph under A, it seems like the order of sentences could be switched so that an informal resolution may be effected after a formal meeting has been requested. At the moment, that seems out of place. I think it does help to clarify if the sentences are switched.
Senator Kalter: So you end the stuff that is already there with the reference to formal meetings and appeals. Then you go to in contrast to formal meetings, informal resolutions…and then you say, an informal resolution may be effected so that you are defining the difference first and then saying what happens?
Senator Daddario:  Right. I guess I really don’t understand the except as noted. Time requirements and deadlines for filing appeals and for other processes are found in Appendix 1 to these policies. That is just a clarification. The except as noted means that certain things are not found in there?

Dr. Catanzaro: There is one set of timelines; it’s a technical issue for non-reappointment appeals, which are only on procedural grounds. Because the timeline differs depending on the year of appointment when the non-reappointment might happen, it is very complicated, so the committee decided to put it into a separate appendix to set it apart.
Senator Daddario: That makes sense. I think that except as noted is unnecessary here.
Senator Bushell: Or clarify it and cite the second appendix.

Dr. Catanzaro: If the new appendices with flowcharts for disciplinary action stay, it would be Appendix 8.

Senator Kalter: So we could instead of saying except as noted, say found in Appendices 1 and 8 or something like that.
Senator Ellerton: The current order makes logical sense where the first paragraph talks about fair and equitable resolution at the DFSC/SFSC and CFSC levels prior to formal meetings. Then it goes into making reference to what could happen even after a formal meeting. I would favor keeping that order, but I agree with the lack of clarity. Just one word extra may help. An informal resolution may “also” be effected after a formal meeting. In other words, we encourage you to have an informal resolution before a formal meeting, but it can also happen after.
Senator Kalter: I see what you are saying. Part of the reason it starts out confusing once you run into that is because you are not acknowledging that you already met for the informal resolution. Anything else on XIII.A?

Senator Crowley: Just to clarify, are we taking out except as noted and putting in Appendix 1 and 8?

Senator Kalter: A lot of us were just recommending that, yes, to make that very clear where the second one is found. You will notice I am not reading that third paragraph because it is not going to change until we go back through and put in the disciplinary stuff. 
Anything for XIII.B other than what Senator Troxell noted about changing c and d? I have a couple of things there that are really minor. In the current c. right after review and/or plan, we could put a comma before “and communicate it to the faculty” and make it “to communicate it to the faculty.” This is XIII.B.c.3. It reads formal meetings to discuss cumulative post tenure reviews or remediation plans with the DFSC/SFSC must be scheduled to allow the DFSC sufficient time to finalize its review and/or plan, and to communicate it to the faculty member by the March 8 deadline. In D, it should say formal meetings to discuss promotion and tenure recommendations with the CFSC must be scheduled to allow the CFSC sufficient time. I can’t remember if we changed that before sending this out, but it should say CFSC there.

Senator McHale: Could you clarify that again? To allow the CFSC/SFSC. It should only be CFSC?

Senator Kalter: Yes, so each of these are indicating when everything happens. The very A is about promotion and tenure with the DFSC. B is about annual evaluations with the DFSC. The current C is about cumulative post tenure reviews with the DFSC. D is promotion and tenure with the CFSC. I think that what they want there is a formal meeting to discuss promotion and tenure recommendations with the CFSC must be scheduled to allow the CFSC sufficient time to finalize its recommendations and communicate, I think it means “them”, to the candidate, the DFSC and the Provost. I think my copy still has two DFSCs rather than the CFSC in that first position.

Senator Troxell: My copy says CFSC/SFSC. SFSC doesn’t go with CFSC. It only goes with DFSC.

Professor Houston: Thank you; we will make that change. 

Senator Kalter: Anything else about XIII.B? Anything about XIII.C, which has no changes right now? How about XIII.D?

Senator Rich: In item 4, there is comment by c33. I really appreciate that change.  It seems like a small wording change, but it is a huge change in meaning from saying that these proceedings will be as random and unprofessional as possible. We won’t follow rules of evidences likes the courts do. We are not bound by that because it is not a court. That is a very substantive change in meaning. I appreciate that.

Senator Kalter: Now we get to the huge insert E. Sam, why don’t you and Professor Houston and Professor Bonnell talk a little about what the ideas were behind this one. There were questions about this one in the faculty commentary:  what is its purpose, why would you want this meeting, etc.
Dr. Catanzaro: The background for this is that and this arose from a particular example and I believe this provision, if passed, will be needed infrequently. If it is needed, it provides a framework for how to do something that might be very difficult to do. Elsewhere in the policies, it is clear that a dean or a chair’s report can be appealed. If the chair or dean is voting in the minority, she or he is required to submit a report stating their minority position. That report can be appealed, even though it is in the minority, in contrast to the minority report that an elected member of the committee might opt to submit. Minority reports are not appealable; dean and chair reports are.
The second premise is that a formal meeting is a required preliminary step to all appeals. We have had a situation where somebody was going to appeal a chair/dean’s report and said do I need to have a formal meeting because I want to do an appeal. I worked with Dan Holland, former Senate Chair, and Nancy Lind, former Chair of URC. I said we need some guidance for this meeting to happen because it needs to happen. So we worked out what you see before you and agreed among us and got some input from the parties involved to see if this seems reasonable; does this seem consistent with the spirit of the policies; does this provide a framework for having this conversation. If you can imagine, you are with your chair or dean and you are not there to contest their minority report because they are in your favor, so providing a structure for having that conversation I think is very important for the faculty member, as well as the chair or dean to have a framework for talking about what the recommendation is and why it might be changed. 
Senator Kalter: Sam and I talked about whether or not it would be wise to clarify that the meeting is optionally without the DFSC/CFSC members present, but their presence might be requested. I have a note to see XIII.E.2 on the next page.  In other words, you have a negative minority report from a chair or director and you would like to appeal it to them, so you need to have a formal meeting with them. That is an intimidating position for an assistant professor to be in. Is it wise for that to be a one on one or a two on one with a faculty advisor present or should there be the ability to say I would like to have this in front of the entire DFSC or CFSC? 
This is not necessarily an answer to the question, but one of the points that Sam raised is sometimes people’s minds can be more easily changed if you have a very small meeting with a person who is in a position of power, like a dean or a chair, so that invoking the presence of that committee may actually increase the likelihood of the success of the appeal less possible. On the other hand, there is always that intimidation factor and the power between those two, which is not witnessed by a DFSC or CFSC. I think we should talk that through because that is a very strange position for a junior professor to be in. 

Senator Winger: Wouldn’t somebody be fighting for his or her life anyway? We are past intimidation, aren’t we?

Senator Kalter: Indeed. What I am trying to think through there is that when people are fighting for their life, but they have only been at the university and possibly in the profession for six, seven or eight years, they don’t necessarily know all of their rights and so is it wise to say something in here if you want the DFSC there, you can have them there or is it better to leave that one on one because I think in the particular case Sam is referring to, that might have worked out in that person’s favor because that was a one on one meeting.
Senator Daddario: This is a really interesting conversation.  Thanks for laying it out the way that you did.  Your description draws my attention to the tone of E.1. A question I have about it is on whom is the burden placed. If we are talking about power relations, the way I read E.1 now makes it seem like the faculty member is supposed to know all these things, putting the burden on the faculty member to defend his or her position. Thus the document doesn’t start out from a supportive position. Do we even want this to support the faculty member or the dean or the chair? If it should support the faculty member, E.1 might read in a different way so that certain information is provided to the faculty member.
Dr. Catanzaro: It was not the intention to put the burden on the faculty member. It is not like you should have known this. It is more like it’s the right thing; they should be informed. We would be open to making that more clear.

Professor Houston: So if the language was changed to say the faculty member shall be informed of the rationale, etc., would that…
Senator Daddario: In order to be able to address, etc., and then tracking throughout the rest of this section to see if the language is similarly favorable.

Senator Kalter: I would add to that. There is a missing “may.” Speak to factors or materials that may have been ignored or misinterpreted. Because right now that wording assumes that the chairperson or dean made the mistake, rather than that the faculty member is trying to speak to whether or not they made a mistake.
Senator Huxford: You were talking about going to see the chair on your own. Is this one of the occasions where you can take an experienced friend to help support you on these occasions?
Senator Kalter: The Provost is pointing out that E.4 says that a faculty advocate may accompany the candidate. There is a missing “be” available, rather than available, to provide advice but not to address the dean or chair or otherwise on the candidate’s behalf. Or maybe it’s an “and be”. I am really not sure exactly how that is supposed to be worded, but that indicates that there can be one other person in there. 
Professor Houston: Do we need to include that language earlier on?

Senator Huxford: Yes, put those two together.

Senator Ellerton: I was not clear in the heading for E to an appeal of a dean or chair/director, I wasn’t sure what that should be. Procedure for meeting with dean or chair/director preliminary to an appeal of a dean. I raise that as a question of wording. Then going on to make it more general, the chair/director report, instead of “making a negative tenure”, but “that made” or “which made” a negative tenure. In other words, try to soften the language slightly in that heading to make it more accessible to the assistant professor. More substantive was should the rationale be written so that the faculty member should be given a written rationale? My concern would be that just to be informed of a rationale, it could be by phone or something like that. It needs to be in writing in some way. Should that be there?
Professor Houston: Shall be informed by writing of the rationale?

Senator Ellerton: Should be given a written rationale, rather than informed, just be given a written rationale.
Dr. Catanzaro: That is implicit in the promotion and tenure policies in a previous article. This would be a response to having received in writing the intended recommendations on the February 1 deadline for CFSC or December 15 deadline for DFSC/SFSC.
Senator Kalter: The candidate does receive the written minority report by the chair? 
Dr. Catanzaro: I believe so.

Senator Kalter: That is my recollection. If, for example, the rest of the DFSC said yes, but the chair said no, the candidate would receive both of those in writing. As I recall, that is what we say elsewhere in the document. Is that the same as what is referred to in E.1? A member should know the rationale or it is expected that there would be an additional written document putting forth the rationale?
Senator Ellerton: Rationale has not been used, report has, and so a minority report may or may not include a rationale.

Senator Kalter: I agree with that, because you could get a report from a concise chair who says I don’t agree with this.

Senator McHale: The sentence is passive. Who is the subject? Is it the candidate or is it the official issuing the minority report. It takes away the negative assumption that they should know. Maybe we need a subject here. The official who issues the minority report should deliver that to the faculty member so that they are made aware of the rationale for the minority decision. Would that help?
Senator Kalter: I think that would be in order.

Dr. Catanzaro: Sometimes in writing policy, it is very hard to avoid passive voice, but we can work with that.

Senator Rich: There are several good additions for a difficult situation for a faculty member and when you look at them collectively, the faculty member is given a choice among alternatives in what the forum really is. Whether it is the formality of two, whether it’s the one-on-one of three, whether there’s the four because they feel an experienced colleague would be helpful.  I like that general strategic choice in presenting the faculty member with that opportunity. In practice, we still count on certain follow throughs and notifications and the emphasis on item 1 that everybody is looking on in terms of how you know everything that is written is going out in front of the faculty member so that they have a chance to raise their questions. I am liking the tone of trying to get that part of it right because that is the follow through in informing you what is going on here and what is the process available to me. The process here in writing is great in terms of putting it into the faculty member’s hands.

Senator Kalter: E.2 is phrased as the dean, chair or director submitting a different recommendation, which in a certain way puts that 2 into wild territory, which I don’t think was intended. I think that what we mean is that a chair/director is making a negative recommendation. Otherwise, they would be in the part of appealing to the CFSC or DFSC. That being as it is currently, and especially because it is so high up in E, sends kind of a weird signal. I am wondering if we are moving number 4 up, then maybe 2 and 3 ought to be changed as well. Essentially, number 2 addresses the original issue that I brought up: should the DFSC be optionally present and it may be well to say 3 first as an alternative to a formal meeting with the entire DFSC, an opportunity to meet with the chair shall be provided to address factors, etc. and then bring in the option to bring in the whole committee but say it is not required as you say in number 2. 
I also think that number 3 should not be at the discretion of the dean or chair or director, where it says information not originally presented in applications for tenure or promotion may submitted and will be considered at the discretion of the dean, chair or director. It seems to me that that should be at the discretion of the committee. If there is additional information, the committee should decide whether it should be considered, not just that one person. Senator Winger, you are saying yes to that?
Senator Winger: Yes, one of the several things you are heading off here is the possibility of a rogue chair.

Senator Bushell: I would agree.

Professor Houston: So your thinking would be that that decision would be at the discretion of the committee in conjunction with the dean or chair or just with the committee?

Senator Kalter: The dean is one voting member of a CFSC and the chair is one voting member of a DFSC, so it is always in conjunction. It’s not the committee versus the chair of the committee. It’s the committee with the chair of the committee presiding over it.
Senator Winger: If there is a battle like this between a DFSC and a chair or a CFSC and a dean, does the DFSC or the CFSC get to rejoin in the materials that go up to the Provost or go up to the next level?  Does the minority report have a response appended? Is it clear to the next level that there is a debate and a potentially rogue chair is challenged in some way? That’s clear at the next level?
Dr. Catanzaro: Yes.

Senator Kalter: Yes, the majority’s recommendation goes up. If the chair doesn’t agree with the majority, that goes up a necessary minority report. If, for example, you had a 3-2 split, three people on the DFSC said yes, the chair and somebody else said no, that second person can write their own report as well, but they don’t have to, but all of that goes up and it also goes to the candidate.
Senator Bushell: Then is there a report from the discussion with the dean or chair about that minority report? Is there a response to that discussion or does only the minority report go up?
Dr. Catanzaro: There is not a response, but the formal meeting, whether it’s the one or one version provided for here or if it is with the full committee, happens during a period between what is referred to as an intended recommendation and a final recommendation. If the formal meeting changes anyone’s mind, then the reports get edited. The original intended recommendations are no longer part of the record and whatever the final recommendations are go forward. In the scenario where nobody changes their mind, the majority report, the chair’s report and any other minority report will go forward to the CFSC and follow the case through the entire process.
Senator Winger:  Sort of as a colloquy.

Dr. Catanzaro:  Yes.

Senator Ellerton: Is there an inconsistency in number 1, the same paragraphs we have been talking about, in that it finishes that the candidate can speak to factors or materials that may have been ignored or misinterpreted, so there is permission there within that. So I am picturing an assistant professor preparing, thinking about what to do. They are given the ability to speak to any factors, but in the current paragraph 3, will be considered at the discretion of … and there is debate about whom. If I was the candidate, I would want to be able to speak to it, so I will choose the first one. I can’t resolve that conflict. I just wondered how that could be addressed.
Dr. Catanzaro: The distinction rests on the candidate having the opportunity to present additional information and the committee or chair/dean having the discretion to evaluate that information as they reconsider their intended recommendation in light of any new information.
Senator Ellerton: If that is the intent, it probably needs to say that and have the opportunity to speak to factors. At the moment, it says “and speak to.” It says to be able to address concerns raised and to speak to factors. It doesn’t actually say to have that opportunity to speak.
Senator Kalter: Senator Ellerton, what I am reading there is a distinction between… So in 1, the faculty member…to be able to address the concerns raised in that recommendation and speak to factors or materials that may have been ignored or misinterpreted, that would be in the original application for tenure or promotion. What seems to me to be being referred to in number 3, the discretion is of information not originally presented in the application for tenure or promotion. Sometimes people try to put in things after the fact. It does seem as though DFSCs and CFSCs should have that discretion to be able to say you had a deadline and you knew about it for six years and you didn’t put in this stuff that should have been in your original application. What are you doing? On the other hand, they should also have the discretion to say there is a really good excuse for that. That’s how I am reading that distinction. In any case in number 1, the candidate can still speak to factors or materials that may have been ignored or misinterpreted and what is being said in 3 is that they can also present stuff that wasn’t originally in the application, but if they do that, they are not guaranteed to have it be under consideration.
Senator Rich: Number 1 doesn’t specify a forum, but serves as a preamble to 2, 3 and 4 in which that is going to occur. So it is subsumed. The statement in 1, you get to say that things were ignored is assumed in 2, 3 and 4, but in addition, if you have things that you want to try to add, here is the rule by which that happens or doesn’t. That is my interpretation of why 1 ends that way and it doesn’t say that in 2, 3 and 4 because it subsumes that 2 is saying you will be given the opportunity to speak to these things, but 2, 3 and 4 is where you speak. 
Professor Houston: I am wondering if an addition to 1, if we included language that says speak to factors or materials previously submitted that may have been ignored or misinterpreted to clarify in number 1 that those materials have been submitted but were ignored or misinterpreted, which differs from in item 3 where the request would be for additional material to be submitted.
Senator Kalter: My sense from Senator Rich’s comment was to leave it in number 1 as is so that it could include both.  Not to specify in number 1 that this is just about the original materials, but that it can be applied to both. Is that correct?
Senator Rich: Either say it in 1 and not say it in 2, 3 and 4, or say what you mean in 2, 3 and 4 separately and not try to say it in 1. One or the other is fine.

Senator Winger: Why would they not accept additions to the portfolio? Is it the fear that people would be lazy and turn in an incomplete portfolio and then now you are past the deadline? I am a little baffled.

Senator Clark: I have had the experience of a faculty member submitting additional information after the decision had been made. So there was an omission in the original submission of their document and the committee made an unfavorable decision, then in the appeal presented additional material. 
Senator Winger: Of course, you would accept the additional material?

Senator Clark: That was part of the debate in the appeal, whether or not to accept that.

Senator Winger: I am wondering why somebody wouldn’t.

Senator Clark: I think it was in that case, but there was a lengthy discussion about whether to do that or not because they had missed the deadline.

Senator Kalter: Sometimes it can be more like the big deadline that is missed. In other words, somebody just got something into page proofs after the deadline, like maybe got it into page proofs by, I don’t remember what the appeal timeline is, and it is like no. The point of this was there was supposed to be a continuing pattern of productivity with scholarly research and you are trying to fudge deadlines in order to get tenured when it was clear that that was supposed to be in the package by November 1. Again, there would be a debate I would imagine on that too, but I would also imagine that the argument would be stronger that this is really kind of pushing it.

Senator Winger: I was imagining an entirely different scenario where somebody’s work is so outside of a paradigm that they would have to bring in a different kind of evidence for the people to understand it.

Senator Chebolu: When we are talking about additional material, it doesn’t mention the timeline because sometimes it takes several months. When the candidate is allowed to present additional material, should that all come from the work that is done before the November 1 deadline or some things that they have been published or in the pipeline that is accepted after the November 1 deadline, can they be included as well?
Senator Kalter: Perhaps other people can speak to that. That is my understanding. 
Senator Rich: In answer to Senator Winger’s question, one of the concerns is allowing the decision makers time to provide due diligence on the materials they have been provided. In terms of assessing quality issues, assessing whether they are valid publications, etc.  The timeline under which the whole process is supposed to take provides them that due diligence. The timeline under which you are within the appeals process is pretty abbreviated. I think that is one of the considerations.

Provost Krejci: I would concur that in my discussions both as dean and as provost, there have been discussions reflective of Senator Rich’s perspective, but also if you extend the deadline for when things are considered, then do you have to go back and extend the deadline for the rest of the people who are submitting their materials and that has been the debate that when is the real deadline and do you open it up and say anybody who has gotten anything accepted in the last two months past the deadline can now submit it for consideration.
Senator Ellerton: To go back to the previously submitted addition, I would concur with Senator Rich that we don’t need that. Keep the wording more simple and paragraph 3 does clarify sufficiently that distinction. 
Coming back to the current discussion about examples. One example that I know of, the fault of a candidate not hearing about the acceptance of a particular piece of work was the problem of the reviewers, who had taken 12 months to review a particular piece of work. No matter what was done, the decision was not forthcoming. In a case like that, I would like to think it could be argued if the decision did come that it was accepted in that timeline where an appeal was made. That would be a special case. I would like there to be the opportunity that that could be considered as an exception because of the time at which it was out of the candidates control to hear that decision. That would be one that would be at the discretion of the committee.
Senator Kalter: I am not sure if I am hearing what you are saying correctly, but I was thinking the same thing but going towards the opposite direction. If you have a department that is asking for external reviewers to look at your materials and you are not giving them the opportunity to review those materials, it goes to the timeline issue that Senator Rich brought up. So you are asking for the DFSC alone to judge whether this makes the difference when the whole point of having external reviews was to help the DFSC to look at the career up until that point as a whole and presumably help make a judgment on that. Trying to put things in after a deadline has passed complicates things quite a bit. I think, Senator Ellerton, that you are making the point that that may be a complication that a DFSC is willing to accept and say this does make a difference, but it still should be at the DFSC’s discretion. 
Senator Bushell: Senator Ellerton, were you describing that as an outside reviewer looking at a whole tenure packet?

Senator Ellerton: It was an editor for a book. It was not the external review, but the point that Senator Kalter was making was the non-acceptance by the deadline of that particular article or chapter, therefore, could not be considered by those external reviewers as part of that review process. That couldn’t be taken into account, but it couldn’t be submitted as a published work or an accepted work. So it had that double complication.
Senator Bushell: I am in favor of the idea of discretion overall, but this, as an example, seems interesting where we are citing one piece. It might be the big piece, but we would hope that, for example, for a tenure case, we come to a tenure decision and already know much more about that person’s record besides “the book.” It seems like we would be able to make a decision within our time period without sort of “the book,” knowing that that person has begun to earn it and there is respect, that there is some recognition of it. 
Senator Kalter:  It does seem like that.  Sometimes when you get to the actual cases it doesn’t fall out like that.

Senator Bushell:  I have one more detail I would like to bring up. In sections 2, 3 and 4, I would suggest that we lose the grouping of the CFSC/DFSC/SFSC with two slashes between them and always put an “or” between CFSC and then the slash between DFSC/SFSC. We do that for the positions dean or director/chair.
Senator McHale: It seemed like the language here is ok. It does clearly identify that there is a deadline just like for students and their homework. It is an issue of fairness to the other applicants, but nevertheless, if there is the big thing that comes in, I like that the committee would have a bit of discretion. It seems like the language is consistent with that as we tease it out. Is that not true?
Dr. Catanzaro: I would think so. I would also note that sometimes the additional information is not an outcome or a product. Suppose one of the rationales cast doubt on the quality or rigor of journals in which the candidate has published. The candidate says, ok, I will get some information on these journals. They may be a little more specialized. They are a little newer sub-disciplines and are unfamiliar and maybe presents whatever is appropriate to the discipline, be it impact ratings, reviews, the editorial board, etc. That could be new information and a DFSC or a CFSC could weigh that in evaluating their initial intended recommendation. That’s another scenario. It is not just the oh my gosh, I just got it published, please reconsider desperate move.
Provost Krejci: I want to make sure I understand. So this goes to the D.2 about witnesses that is also about witnesses in E.5. E.5 then refers back to D.2 in terms of a candidate wishing to bring witnesses, which is different than the faculty advocate. I have two questions about this. One, it says the DFSC/SFSC or CFSC shall have the discretion to limit the number of witnesses at a formal meeting. Are you giving those bodies discretion to say it is limited to zero?

Senator Kalter: Having been at the last five-year review, that was not the intent. My recollection is that the candidate has the right to have witnesses. I think that the idea was you can’t bring your 75 students with you; pick three. 
Provost Krejci: I’m concerned that could be misinterpreted in that way.  

My second question about witnesses then, in lieu of the discussion about what materials they are bringing forth, are they bringing forth new evidence or evidence that could have been ignored or misinterpreted? What they say in E.5 is that they can bring witnesses and participate as provided in D.2. It says that the witnesses can provide perspectives regarding teaching, scholarly or creative productivity or service. It doesn’t indicate whether that is perspectives that were ignored or misinterpreted or new perspectives. 
Professor Houston: Did you have a recommendation that would help your office implement this policy?
Provost Krejci: My only recommendation is that it is clear so if the question comes up, I understand the policy.
Senator Crowley: It’s a good point.  What does perspectives mean? Does it mean additional data? Does it mean additional artifacts? 
Senator Kalter: And also, that is in a clause that says usually you won’t need the perspectives. The point of witnesses is not just to bring perspectives on the productivity, but for some other reason. The sentence has the word that I was about to suggest for the next sentence, “reasonable” number of witnesses. That is an interesting question because that could be interpreted to mean zero.  Anything else on E?
Let’s go to F. Some renumbering in that first number 1 and in number 2, changing performance evaluations may be appealed to the CFSC only to include performance evaluations conducted by a DFSC may be appealed to the CFSC only and then adding performance evaluations conducted by a CFSC in the absence of a DFSC may be appealed to the FRC, etc. and another renumbering. Any comments or questions on that one?

Did we establish already that there may be some places where there is an absence or the threat of an absence of a DFSC? I know this is the case in Milner or Mennonite and I think we established that we still need that language.
Dr. Catanzaro: Yes.

Senator Kalter: In G, everything is editorial and a must/shall that we are going to ignore for the moment.   Anything else in G?

Going to H, there is a must/shall that we are going to ignore. There is a substantive cross out that changes essentially having a floating deadline versus setting a deadline so that basically the note next to H1 says we are going to extend the deadline just a little bit to March 10 just to clarify that problem with the number of business days. In H2, a minor editorial, a faculty member’s request for an appeal versus a faculty member’s intent to file an appeal. Another editorial, H3, the FRC in promotion and tenure cases must receive an appeal from a faculty member as defined in XIII.C, including written information and also setting another deadline rather than have it be floating. Then down at the bottom, a renumbering that we are going to ignore.  Anything about H?
Senator McHale: I have lost what the FRC is.

Senator Kalter: The FRC is the Faculty Review Committee. The URC creates the policies and sends them up to us for final approval. The FRC is solely a body that hears actual particular cases. So if you have a negative recommendation from a DFSC, but a positive one from a CFSC, you can appeal the negative DFSC recommendation to the FRC as well. The FRC is kind of like an appellate body, but really what they are doing is making an independent recommendation to the Provost and then ultimately to the President. 

Senator Crowley: Isn’t it true that the FRC might wind up making a recommendation to the AFEGC?
Senator Kalter: The Academic Freedom, Ethics and Grievance Committee has several kinds of charges. One of the things that can happen in a tenure and promotion case is that you get an appeal to the FRC, let’s say an appeal of a DFSC’s negative recommendation. The FRC can send the whole case out to the AFEGC, which is a totally separate body, to determine whether or not there was an academic freedom problem with what occurred or an ethics problem with what occurred. They will render a decision. I believe that when it is referred from a committee, and it can be either referred from the FRC or the CFSC, the AFEGC makes a determination and sends it back to that committee as advisory. For example, yes, we found a problem with academic freedom violations on the road to tenure.  They don’t just receive cases from committees, they also receive cases from individuals who say I believe my academic freedom has been violated or that somebody violated the Code of Ethics against me.  We have a really good process.  Whoever set this system up originally back in the day, they were really thinking about all of the different variations.  Anything else on H?

"I" is the initiation of performance evaluation appeal. There is a must/shall in number 3. There is a substantive similar extension of a deadline or setting a deadline in number 3 as well. In number 4, an editorial rewording to again clarify this is not of an appellant’s performance evaluation appeal, but shall inform the chairperson/director of the faculty member’s intent to file that appeal. In number 5, the CFSC in performance evaluation cases must receive from the appellant an appeal as defined in C above and again setting a deadline. On the next page, a will/shall that we are going to ignore and an editorial reference in number 10.
Senator Rich: Quick question on SC41, right at the header, the part that is stricken out. Quick question in terms of the references in the letter to the policies and materials and timelines that the faculty member should be aware of. Are those matters of practice or policy? Are there attachments to the letter? 
Senator Kalter: Where are you?

Senator Rich: Oh, I see I am on J.

Senator Kalter: Can you hold that question? Anything on I? 
So J, mine says SC40. Somehow I have an older version.

Senator Daddario: Could we not refer to the comments, because when I make my own comments in there, they switch around. So it might be better to just stick to the section numbers.

Senator Kalter: Senator Rich is on section J and he is reading the comment next to the header that says deleted sentence deemed redundant with statement in A referencing the appendix timelines. And your question was what is in the packet.

Senator Rich: Just what is in the envelope because there was some discussion before about the follow through on the process and making sure that in particular we take assistant professors getting their first scary letter and the issue of whether they are fully informed of the process and the timelines and how that follow through occurs. It starts with what is in the envelope.  What is in that envelope is pretty important and how clear that is to the faculty member receiving it.  Is that a matter of policy or practice and does it need to be policy if the practice is different in different departments?
Senator Daddario: Point of clarification. So you mean, for example, you get the scary letter, but in the scary letter is the policy and it is highlighted and it says start here?
Senator Rich: You receive the letter, your recommendation, the actual statement to you, but the statement of what you can do in appeal and what the timeline is for is for that and what the policies are that regulate those appeals. There is reference to that in what you receive, but is that just a matter of practice or policy?
Dr. Catanzaro: It is a matter of practice.  It would be best practice to say that you have the right to appeal this and here are the deadlines. I don’t know if every department includes all that in detail in all their letters because the letter content is not mandated by policy.

Senator Rich: I go back to Senator Daddario’s earlier point about shall be informed. This is where it begins is what is in the envelope. It may be that a matter of policy is shall be informed along with the letter. It may be, at a minimum, that you have in that letter the formal statement of informing about the policies, where to go, what the timeline is, etc. Maybe not reams of policy in that envelope, but at least the references need to be there and it might be that policy should speak to “shall be informed,” that mechanism at a minimum. 

Senator Kalter: Let me just go through J. For J, there are a couple of editorial changes. One is simply crossing out that redundant sentence right next to the title. On the next page, there is a renumbering and then on the page after that, another renumbering and then in J.9, an addition of a reference back to an earlier part of the ASPT Policy.

Senator McHale: My point is in reference to Senator Rich’s comment. At least in the School of Communication, we refer back to this document. That is why we have this document. Even with the scary letter, it says at the bottom look at this document, to prepare now in order to recognize one’s rights and responsibilities. 

Dr. Catanzaro: Each new faculty member gets a hard copy of the ASPT Policies.

Senator Kalter: Anything else on J?

In K.1, there are a couple of editorial additions. There is an editorial that adds a reference to the appendix that we were looking for before. In K.5, there is an editorial that actually names the policy accurately and makes it look like we don’t harass or discriminate, but stop those things. Also in K.5, a substantive clarification that says that the OEOEA will conduct a timely investigation consistent with its standard procedures for addressing such complaints. 
I do have one thing there. I think we should say consistent with national standard procedures, rather than its standard procedures, to clarify that they are actually looking at things like Title IX and other kinds of laws. I am sure that they also set their own procedures.

Senator Winger: National or state, you can bring in any level that you want.

Senator Kalter: I am just concerned that the “its” sounds like they…like there is no objective reference there.

Senator Troxel: We are talking about two different things. The university’s policies are consistent with national standards, but most court cases are based upon did the university following its own policies and procedures and I figured this was what this was referring to.

Professor Houston: Technically, the OEOEA is charged to comply with a specific set of national laws and federal policies in addition to whatever university policies would be set.

Senator Winger: So federal law is already built into this document?
Dr. Catanzaro: I think that would be implicit. I don’t think it would harm anything by working this in the spirit of Senator Kalter’s suggestion.

Senator Kalter: I think we might be able to address it just by taking out the “its”.
Senator Winger: If Illinois were to change its statutes, does that automatically change ISU’s?
Senator Kalter: It would trigger a change in ISU’s policies, but that change would have to be made.

Senator Winger: I am asking if we are pegged to their standards. When they make a change, we make a change?
Dr. Catanzaro: Yes, I believe so. For example, a couple of years ago, Title IX was interpreted to mean if a student was alleged to have been sexually assaulted, that was also to be considered gender-based harassment and discrimination. So now we have a Title IX duty to pursue those in addition to the other duties that we have to pursue those kinds of cases.

Senator Kalter: Anything else on K?  

I have one question on K.4 and this is actually questioning our work five years ago. I wonder if we ever incorporated those things in K.4 into the AFEGC Policy. If we haven’t, we should. 
Also, is five days sufficient time for a first-year employee who does not have great familiarity with our rules to file whatever is said there? So in order to allow a final decision prior to the end of the faculty member’s appointment, the faculty member must file a complaint as required by AFEGC within five days of the date that the faculty member receives the official notification of non-reappointment. Is five days sufficient time? That seems really tight. I am not really sure that we set in other places deadlines for AFEGC appeals.
Dr. Catanzaro: This is not an appeal like the other appeals that we have been talking about. If the person thinks that the non-reappointment is because they are teaching some controversial stuff and it is a violation of academic freedom, it just happens to be co-located in time with a non-reappointment issue, but it is an academic freedom grievance just like any other that would go. Your question about the appropriate number of business days as a timeline, we don’t want it to get it dragged out and then having AFEGC feeling like they might not have sufficient time to do their job before the person’s contract is terminated and depending on what year of appointment, the non-reappointment comes, there might not be a lot of time. 
Senator Kalter: Let me refer that one to URC for discussion and we have somewhere the minutes that detail that debate because this was part of the new stuff that we instituted even after that whole year of long meetings. So I know that there was some rationale for that, but looking at it today and thinking about AFEGC policy, I am wondering if we made it too tight and whether we need to have a deadline there. The other thing that could happen is that you can end up being unemployed but still have to have standing. You got non-reappointed because…the one you brought up is a classic one across the country…I am teaching something controversial and they fired me for it. You end up not in a job, but you still have standing with the AFEGC because the reason you are not in the job is because you got fired for the academic freedom issue. So you don’t want to put that tight of a deadline on things and you don’t want it be too wide either, so some sort of discussion about do we want that language there would be helpful.
Are there any other observations about anything in this longest section of the entire book?

Adjournment
Motion: By Senator Daddario, seconded by Senator Dawson, to adjourn. The motion was unanimously approved.
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